
 1 

Solid Waste Board Minutes 
Park County, Montana 

June 20, 2013 
 
 
Attendance: Solid Waste Board (SWB) members Allen Carter, Robert Currie, Dennis 
Dodge, John Kaiser, Ernie MacCracken.  Also present were Warren Newhouse II, refuse; 
Dick Juhnke, citizen; John Mueller, minutes clerk 
 
Call to Order: @1:03 p.m., Chairman John Kaiser called a meeting to order in the East 
Room of the City-County Complex. 
 
Public Comment:  None 
 
Review of Minutes:  The board reviewed minutes for the May 16, 2013, meeting.  Bob 
Currie said the minutes should state Commission Tinsley reported that continued use of 
the county transfer station would cost $50,000 to $60,000 per year for maintenance, 
lease, utilities, repairs and other operating expenses.  Allen Carter moved to approve the 
minutes with amendments.  Dennis Dodge seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
Review/Decide on Landowner Refuse Assessment Requests: None 
 
Department Reports 
 
Manager’s Report:  Warren Newhouse II provided an oral report of refuse department 
activities.  He said pup trailers for green box sites were in use.  Three drivers have Class-
A CDL licenses.  A driver will retire in July.  Newhouse had 16 hours of overtime on his 
last paycheck with current employee numbers.  He said an illegal dump at Willow Creek 
was being investigated and another occurred in the Clyde Park green box site.  Newhouse 
said he would meet with the city refuse department that day to discuss timing and 
logistics of dumping at the city refuse station during the high trash volume season.  Since 
June 3, 11 people scheduled to dump at the landfill, and he had turned away 20 people 
because schedules did not line up.  Many citizens want to dump household trash.   
 
Commissioner Report:  John Kaiser reviewed decisions the Commission made in a public 
meeting to address SWB recommendations.   
 
Ernie MacCracken said he talked with a refuse driver about storing and turning around a 
pup trailer in Clyde Park. 
 
Business 
 
1. Discussion/Decision on Landfill Blowables; Hours of Operation; Engineering Report:  
Newhouse said no blowables were being deposited in the landfill.  Asbestos materials are 
covered immediately.   
 



 2 

2. Discussion/Decision on Tire Disposal Options - Update:  Newhouse said an attempt is 
being made to shred and bale tires at the same at the landfill for a demonstration.  
Newhouse said 6.5 tons of tires were dumped on June 13 at a green box site in the valley.  
On June 18 it was full again and 75% full the previous day.  Robert Currie moved the 
Commission resolve with Mike Adkins the disposal of Adkins’ tires at the landfill with a 
definitive timetable.  Allen Carter seconded the motion.  Motion passed.   
 
MacCracken said the cost of illegal tire dumping in green boxes to the county taxpayer 
needs to be determined. 
 
3. Discussion/Decision on County Collection Sites; Ownership, Leases, Trade Backs:  
The board created a subcommittee to assess green box ownership to include Currie, 
MacCracken and Newhouse. 
 
4. Discussion/Decision on Forest Service Collection Site; Limited Hours - Update:  
Newhouse said hours of operation were placed at the site and a fence will be repaired. 
 
5. Discussion/Decision on Chico Refuse Site – Fire Pit and Bid to Finish Fence - Update: 
Newhouse said burning at the site would require a Montana DEQ burn permit and area 
landowner notification.     
 
Currie said the city said it felt it was getting too much construction material in the county 
loads and could not get needed weights for transfer to Great Falls.  There was discussion 
about the city telling the county it would take all county refuse prior to the signed 
agreement for all county refuse to go to the city transfer station.   
 
Newhouse said bids were received to complete the fence at the Chico site.  The county is 
looking into hiring an employee to complete the fence and monitor the site. 
 
Citizen Dick Juhnke read into the record a written ride-along report submitted by board 
member Mike Fanning. 
 
The board said the county continues to need manned refuse/green box sites with hours.  
There was discussion about asking the Commission about implementing the board’s 
master plan.  Newhouse said he would request the Commission hold a Commission 
meeting with board members present to discuss the implementation status of the master 
plan.  
 
6.  Discussion/Decision on Collection Options at Gardiner Collection Site - Update:  
Kaiser said the Commission is seeking options at the Gardiner site, such as a Bobcat 
pushing refuse into a 40 yard box, a z-wall system with 40-yard boxes or a compactor 
facility.  Currie said the board needs to know the budgetary constraints it must work 
within before it can make a recommendation to the Commission. 
 
Newhouse said the cheapest option for the site would be to use a front load truck, which 
Commissioner Malone had proposed.  Newhouse said he got quotes from Solid Waste 



 3 

Systems for the Gardiner site of $44,000 and $36,000 requiring the county to put in the 
concrete pads.  
 
Currie said the Commission needs to define whether it will allow a foundation onsite 
and/or adhere to bear committee requirements.  The board asked Newhouse to ask the 
Commission those questions before the next meeting. 
 
Agenda item tabled. 
 
7.  Discussion/Decision on Roll-off Requirement for Contractor Jobsites:  The board said 
the master plan and manned refuse sites again relate to the issue.  Tabled 
 
8.  Discussion/Decision on Four Corners Recycling:  Dennis Dodge moved to recommend 
to the Commission to go with Four Corners Recycling.  Allen Carter seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed.   
 
9.  Discussion/Decision on Inviting State and DOWL HKM to Discuss Capping Class II 
Portion of Landfill:  Ernie MacCracken moved to invite the state and DOWL HKM to a 
special meeting with a commissioner present.  Bob Currie seconded the motion.  Motion 
passed. 
 
Other Items: None 
 
Discuss Next Meeting Agenda:  Kaiser said he will have Old Business and New 
Business sections on the next meeting. 
 
Next Meeting Date: July 18 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Adjourn: @3:02 p.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


